1954

Vincent Dykes v. Reliable Furniture & Carpet Company et al : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

For convenience in referring to the parties in this case, they will be referred to herein the same as they are designated in the pleadings filed in the lower court.

The plaintiff, a minor, commenced an action by his guardian ad litem, in the District Court of Weber County, State of Utah, to recover judgment against the defendant, Reliable Furniture & Carpet Company, defendant and third-party plaintiff, for personal injuries alleged to have been sustained by plaintiff in falling from a baby crib which was purchased by plaintiff's parents from said defendant, a retail furniture merchant engaged in business at Ogden, Utah. Plaintiff's complaint alleges that the catch mechanism on the gate of the crib was defective and: "That the defendant was negligent in failing to inspect, discover and remedy said defects in said crib mechanism, and that said negligence was the proximate cause of said child's fall and injury." The third-party defendant, Walker Manufacturing Company, is not a party to said action brought by plaintiff against said defendant. (R. 2).

Subsequent to the filing of said complaint, said defendant, as third-party plaintiff, filed a third-party complaint against Walker Manufacturing Company, as third-party defendant, in which it is alleged that if said crib was defective as alleged in plaintiff's complaint, such defect was proximately caused by said third-party defendant in the manner in which said crib was designed or manufactured; and said third-party complaint demands judgment against third-party defendant in the amount of any judgment which may be recovered by plaintiff against third-party plaintiff. (R. 4). Summons was issued on said third-party complaint and purported service thereof was made in Salt Lake County, Utah, on a person named Harland Fredrickson. (R. 7).

Third-party defendant filed a motion in this case, as authorized by Rule 12(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure and in the form prescribed thereby, whereby third-party defendant moved the district court as follows:

"To dismiss the third-party action or in lieu thereof to quash the return of service of the third-party summons on the grounds (a) that the court lacks jurisdiction over the person of said third-party defendant, and (b) that said third-party defendant has not been properly served with process in this action, all of which more clearly appears in the affidavits of Sam Walker and Harland Fredrickson hereto annexed as Exhibit "A" and Exhibit "B", respectively.

C. E. Henderson
of Ray, Rawlins, Jones & Henderson
Attorneys for Third-Party Defendant,
Walker Manufacturing Company." (R. 8).

Said motion of third-party defendant came on regularly for hearing on October 13, 1953, before the Honorable John A. Hendricks, one of the judges of said district court and, following the arguments of counsel, the matter was taken under advisement. In support of said motion, affidavits of Sam Walker (owner and proprietor of Walker Manufacturing Company) and Harland Fredrickson, marked Exhibit "A" and Exhibit "B", respectively, were annexed to and filed with said motion. (R. 8). The deposition of Harland Fredrickson, on behalf of third-party plaintiff, was taken pursuant to stipulation of counsel for third-party plaintiff and third-party defendant and the original transcript thereof was submitted to and filed in said district

court. (R. 10). For convenience, the transcript of said deposition, which is designated in the record as 010, will be hereinbelow designated as "Tr".

On or about March 31, 1954, said district court made and entered the following order:

"Minute Entry

Ogden, Utah
March 31st, 1954

Gentlemen:

Re; Civil file #28090 Vincent Dykes et-al vs Reliable Furniture and Carpet Co., Defendant, and Walker Manufacturing Co third party defendant, the motion to dismiss was argued by Mr. Henderson and taken under advisement, on the First day of March The Court denied the Third Party Motion, and no notice was given.

The Court at this time grants the Third Party defendant 10 days from this date to file an answer.

Lawrence M. Malen, County Clerk
A. M. Allen, Deputy." (R. 9).

A copy of said order, which was the only order entered with respect to said motion of third-party defendant, was received by counsel for third-party defendant, on April 1, 1954.

Walker Manufacturing Company is the trade name by which Sam Walker, who is a resident of the State of California, carries on business in said state at the City of Burbank. (R. 8—Exhibit "A"). Said third-party defendant has never been a resident of the State of Utah and has not been served with summons in this action unless the

purported service in Salt Lake County on Harland Fredrickson be held a valid service on said third-party defendant. At all times herein involved, third-party defendant carried on the business of manufacturing infant furniture at Burbank, California, and had no place of business, no office, no plant, facilities or equipment, no bank accounts, no records, no merchandise or samples of its products and no property of any kind in the State of Utah. (R. 8—Exhibit “A”, R. 10—Tr. 4, 5, 17, 38, 41, 45-47). Third-party defendant has no employees, no telephone or directory listing, and did no advertising in Utah. (R. 10—Tr. 4, 5, 13, 38-39, 45).

Harland Fredrickson, upon whom said purported service of summons was made, was, at all times herein mentioned, an independent contractor who maintained his place of business in Salt Lake County, Utah, at his own expense. His business, which he characterizes as a manufacturers’ representative, involved the solicitation of orders for products of various manufacturers, including those of third-party defendant. When he obtained an order, he forwarded it to the manufacturer for acceptance and if accepted by the manufacturer, the goods covered by the order were shipped by the manufacturer direct to the purchaser who made payment therefor direct to the manufacturer. If an order for goods was accepted by the manufacturer and shipped to the purchaser and the purchaser accepted and paid for the goods, Harland Fredrickson received a commission for his services in obtaining such order. (R. 8—Exhibit “B”, R. 10—Tr. 17-20, 25-26, 34-36, 40-42, 47-48). He handled no merchandise and had no authority to negotiate with respect to the price or terms of payment for goods

ordered, nor to pass on the credit risk of a customer or make adjustments on goods ordered and shipped. (R. 8—Exhibit “A”, Exhibit “B”, R. 10, Tr. 13-15, 18-20, 22-25, 31, 34-37, 40-46).

STATEMENT OF POINTS

1. The District Court of Weber County erred in denying the motion of third-party defendant to dismiss the third-party action because the record shows that said court lacks jurisdiction over the person of said third-party defendant and that the purported service of summons in said action is null and void.

2. Said third-party complaint states no claim and presents no issue upon which relief could be granted against said third-party defendant in favor of said third-party plaintiff.

ARGUMENT

POINT NO. 1

THE DISTRICT COURT OF WEBER COUNTY ERRED IN DENYING THE MOTION OF THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT TO DISMISS THE THIRD-PARTY ACTION BECAUSE THE RECORD SHOWS THAT SAID COURT LACKS JURISDICTION OVER THE PERSON OF SAID THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT AND THAT THE PURPORTED SERVICE OF SUMMONS IN SAID ACTION IS NULL AND VOID.

To sustain the purported service of summons in the third-party action, third-party plaintiff relies, and must

rely on Rule 4(e) (10) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, which provides for service:

“Upon a natural person, nonresident of the State of Utah, doing business in this State at one or more places of business, as set forth in Rule 17(e), by delivering a copy thereof to the defendant personally or to one of his managers, superintendents or agents.”

Rule 17(e) which is referred to in Rule 4(e) (10) provides as follows:

“Action Against a Non-resident doing Business in this State. When a non-resident person is associated in and conducts business within the State of Utah in one or more places in his own name or a common trade name, and said business is conducted under the supervision of a manager, superintendent, or agent, said person may be sued in his own name in any action arising out of the conduct of said business.”

We respectfully submit that such purported service was null and void and of no force and effect because it is established by the record in this case that third-party defendant, a non-resident of the State of Utah, was not doing business in this state at any place of business within this state at the times herein involved, or for that matter at any other times, and that such purported service was not made on a manager, superintendent or agent of said third-party defendant. *Parke, Davis & Co. vs. Fifth Judicial District Court in and for Beaver County et al.*, 93 Utah 217, 72 P. (2d) 466; *McGriff vs. Charles Antell, Inc.* (Utah), 256 P. (2d) 703; 10 A. L. R. (2d) pages 200-203.

In *Parke, Davis & Co. vs. Fifth Judicial District Court in and for Beaver County et al.*, (supra), this court states the facts and holding of said case as follows:

"The cause is before us on petition of plaintiff and the demurrer of defendants. McLennan was a traveling salesman for Parke, Davis & Co. in Utah. Such orders as he obtained were sent to the branch office of the company at Kansas City and, if accepted, the goods were shipped direct to the purchasers in interstate commerce. McLennan was not an officer of the company. He handled no merchandise, and all orders solicited by him were on credit to be approved and extended by the credit manager at Kansas City. The salesman had no authority to extend credit to any one. The corporation was not otherwise in business in Utah, had no office or place of business, and owned no property in the state. It had never applied for permission to do business in the state, had done no business therein, and had designated no person within the state upon whom process might be served.

"(1) This court has held that the soliciting of orders for goods by an agent of a foreign corporation and shipment of goods pursuant to such order by such corporation of another state directly to the purchaser is in interstate commerce and does not constitute doing business within the state so as to subject the corporation to the statute prescribing conditions applicable to foreign corporations doing business within the state. *Advance-Rumely Thresher Co., Inc.*, v. *Stohl*, 75 Utah 124, 283 P. 731. It is a general rule that: 'The mere soliciting and obtaining of orders within a state by the agent of a foreign corporation, for goods to be shipped into the state to the purchasers, do not amount to doing business within the state so as to render the corporation

amenable to service of process therein.' Note, 101 A. L. R. 133; *People's Tobacco Co., Ltd., v. American Tobacco Co.*, 246 U. S. 79, 38 S. Ct. 233, 62 L. Ed. 587, Ann. Cas. 1918C, 537; *Curlee Clothing Co. v. Oklahoma Tax Comm.* (Okl. Sup.) 68 P. (2d) 834."

POINT NO. 2

SAID THIRD-PARTY COMPLAINT STATES NO CLAIM AND PRESENTS NO ISSUE UPON WHICH RELIEF COULD BE GRANTED AGAINST SAID THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT IN FAVOR OF SAID THIRD-PARTY PLAINTIFF.

It is now established by a recent decision of this court that said third-party complaint should be dismissed on the ground that said third-party complaint states no claim and presents no issue upon which relief could be granted against third-party defendant in favor of third-party plaintiff.

Plaintiff's complaint, to which third-party defendant is not a party, alleges as follows:

"3. That late in January, 1953, the parents of said child at Ogden, Utah, went to the defendant's store for the purpose of buying a baby crib. That Raymone Labrecque, said defendant's salesman, showed them cribs and demonstrated one of the same make as the one selected by said parents. That the defendant's salesman, in demonstrating said crib, had difficulty in making the gate of said crib catch and tried several times before he was able to do so. That the parents of said child selected a crib similar to the one demonstrated but informed the defendant that they would not accept that one be-

cause of the difficulty with the catch, whereupon the salesman assured them that the particular crib was only for display purposes and that they were to be sent a different crib, but of the same make which would be free from defects. Whereupon the parents purchased a crib and the defendant's employee subsequently delivered and assembled the same at the parent's house for use by said child. That said delivered crib was likewise defective in that the catch or locking mechanism which held the gate in the raise position was improperly manufactured and assembled.

"4. That the parents of said child placed him in the crib the night of February 21, 1953, and raised the gate until it was held in the raised position, but because of the defect in the construction of the catch mechanism said gate fell, permitting said child to fall from said crib to a cement floor, where he suffered a fractured skull.

"5. That the defendant was negligent in failing to inspect, discover and remedy said defects in said crib mechanism, and that said negligence was the proximate cause of said child's fall and injury."

The third-party complaint demands judgment against third-party defendant only in the event plaintiff recovers judgment against third-party plaintiff and, in support thereof said third-party complaint alleges:

"That if said crib was defective as alleged in 'Exhibit C', such was proximately caused by the third party defendant in the manner in which said crib was designed or manufactured, and if the plaintiff obtains judgment or any part thereof, against the third party plaintiff, then said third party defendant is liable to the said third party plaintiff for the amount of said judgment."

In *Hardman vs. Mathews, et al.*, 262 P. (2d) 748, which was decided by this court on November 2, 1953, Justice Henroid, speaking for the court, held:

"If the negligence of the interpleaded parties were the sole proximate cause of the injuries as defendants maintain, the latter would have a complete defense to the action without the joinder. If actively they were jointly or concurrently negligent with defendants, joinder would avail the latter nothing since contribution cannot be had between joint or concurring tort-feasors, in a case like this, unless sanctioned by statute, there being none such in Utah."

CONCLUSION

It is respectfully submitted that the lower court erred in denying the motion of third-party defendant to dismiss said third-party action because said court did not acquire jurisdiction over third-party defendant by the purported service of summons in Salt Lake County, Utah, on said Harland Fredrickson. The material facts shown by the record establish that third-party defendant, at all times herein involved, was a nonresident of the State of Utah. that he was not doing business in this state at any place of business in this state, and that Harland Fredrickson was an independent contractor who maintained his own place of business in Utah at his own expense and was not a manager, superintendent, or agent of third-party defendant.

Furthermore, it is now clear under a decision of this court, *Hardman vs. Mathews* (supra), decided during the pendency of the present case in the lower court, that the

third-party complaint filed against third-party defendant states no claim and could present no issue upon which relief could be granted against third-party defendant in favor of third-party plaintiff.