1954

Vincent Dykes v. Reliable Furniture & Carpet Company et al : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

Q. The first of February of what year?

A. Of this year.”

Upon inquiry to the company from a person in this area, Mr. Fredrickson's name would be furnished by the company as the company's representative (Dep. 10). On

page 10 of the deposition, he testified :

“Q. Does the Walker Manufacturing Company or did the company that preceded it, the Tyre company, furnish the people in the State of Utah such as the Reliable Furniture & Carpet Company who might buy their products the name of their representatives in various states?

A. I would imagine so.

Q. Did they furnish them your name as a representative of the company?

A. Well, it would happen in this case. If they should write the company and ask them who represented them or who had the pictures and so forth in order to show them what they manufactured, they would give my name.

Q. And that would be true of the Reliable Furniture & Carpet Company or any other company that happened to write the company and ask who represented them in this state. Is that correct?

A. Well, that's right.

Q. Do they have any other representatives in this state other than yourself?

A. No.

Q. And is your territory or your field in which you may represent them limited to the State of Utah?

A. Would you repeat that, please?

Q. Is your territory or the locality in which you represent them limited to the State of Utah?

A. No, it's unlimited. I could sell in New York if I wanted to.”

Continuing on page 12, Mr. Fredrickson testified:

“Q. Do you have the exclusive right to represent the Walker Manufacturing Company here in the State of Utah?

A. I don't have that in writing, no. He could have somebody else up here tomorrow without ever telling me about it. Of course, that is not a normal business procedure, but—

Q. Is it your understanding that you do have an exclusive right to represent them?

A. No, it isn't even that, because I can send his pictures and prices back to him and tell him I don't want to represent him any longer, and he can do the same thing for me.

Q. I mean as long as the relationship continues on a friendly basis, as long as—

A. It would be assuming that I was his—the only person selling in this area for him, yes.

Q. And would that same practice have prevailed during the time that it was known as the Tyre Manufacturing Company?

A. Yes.”

Although he represents a number of other companies, he does not represent any other company selling the same items as the Walker Manufacturing Company (Dep. 28), and believes that the company would object to his representing another company and not allow him to represent it further (Dep. 27).

The company furnished him with catalogues, brochures, pictures of the items they sold, price lists and order blanks (Dep. 5-6). He contacts prospective retail

outlets such as defendant Reliable Furniture & Carpet Company, furnishes them with catalogues and other materials and shows them pictures of the items offered for sale. Assuming he is successful, he will take an order for the particular items desired, quoting the prices shown on the price lists (Dep. 17-18). This order will generally be taken on one of the company's order blanks and will then be forwarded to the company.

The items ordered will be shipped directly from the company to the purchaser at the prices quoted by Fredrickson from the price lists. A notice that the item has been shipped, showing the price charged, is sent to Harland Fredrickson (Dep. 19-20). At the close of each month, the company forwards him a commission of six percent on all sales during the preceding period. He receives this commission on all sales made by the company in this area, whether the order was taken by him personally or not (Dep. 26).

The witness is kept advised of the status of the various accounts, and in the event of a delinquency has authority to speak to the customers about such delinquent accounts (Dep. 23). In the event payment was forthcoming, he would suggest that payment be forwarded directly to the company, but does feel that he might accept payment and forward the same to the company (Dep. 37).

In the event complaints were made about any of the items sold by the company, he would go to the customer registering the complaint, with a representative of the store which sold the item (Dep. 38), make an investiga-

tion of the complaint and forward a report of the same to the company (Dep. 13 and 38). The stores to whom Harland Fredrickson sells, when they have a request for items which they do not have on hand, sold by the Walker Manufacturing Company, generally arrange among themselves to secure the items from one another; however, according to the witness, they could call the witness and he would refer them to another store where they might be able to obtain the desired item.

As to his authority to make adjustments, Mr. Fredrickson testified on Page 13:

“Q. Now, did the Walker Manufacturing Company have any service men in the State of Utah who serviced their products?

A. No.

Q. If there were a particular item which they sold and the item happened not to be up to par, would there be anybody in the State of Utah whom they would call and have come and look over the equipment?

A. Well, in the event that some particular mechanism or crib panel or crib side or what have you proved dissatisfactory, the company would normally write to them for replacement; and in the event that there was some discrepancy, the company would probably write me and tell me to go examine it or inspect it and ascertain what the damage was in that regard. That would be the only thing.

Q. Would you have any authority in such circumstances to make an adjustment?

A. No, I couldn't make any adjustment of any

kind. All I could do was write the factory as to what I found, and then they would make the adjustment that they felt was satisfactory to both parties.

Q. If you found the equipment to be defective, could you pick the equipment up and send it back to the factory and have the factory send a replacement without writing—

A. It is never handled like that. In the event that the part was faulty, the normal course would be for the store to return it, or re-order a particular part, and when they received it, return the faulty one.”

And on Page 15 he testified:

“Q. Do you go on behalf of the Walker Manufacturing Company when there are complaints about their equipment to the home of the individual or to the store and make an inspection?

A. I would go to the store only, and I would only go with one of the representatives of the store to look at the merchandise because, you see, I can never go to a person’s home and look over some damaged merchandise by myself.

Q. And after you have looked over this damaged merchandise, would you then make a report of your findings to the company?

A. Well, see, as I say, that’s the only thing I can do because I’m not authorized to make a repair of any kind.

Q. If you decide that the particular fault that happened to exist in this particular product that you went to examine was not by reason of its faulty manufacture, would you then

have to report it to the company, or could you just inform them of your findings?

A. Well, all I would do is tell them what I found and let them draw their own conclusions.

Q. Tell who?

A. Mr. Walker.”

As to his procedure generally in representing the company in respect to sales, Mr. Fredrickson testified on Page 19:

“Q. And the person who bought the crib would order a specific crib. Is that correct?

A. That’s right.

Q. And on your order blank you would specify the particular crib that they wanted to buy?

A. That’s right.

Q. And you send that in to the company. Is that correct?

A. That’s right.

Q. Now, what would happen after you sent this order to the company?

A. Well, most of the factory’s shipments are based, of course, on orders or a back log of orders as they call it. As they receive an order, they place it on either the bottom of a file or top and, anyway, they work in sequence. They receive an order one day, and the order is scheduled for shipment the same day if there are no other orders preceding it, and then the item is boxed, packaged, and shipped directly to the party who ordered it.

Q. Now, the crib that you sold then would be

shipped directly to the party who ordered the crib. Is that correct?

A. Oh, I would probably receive a notice, yes.

Q. And what would happen with regard to the billing? Would you receive a bill for the crib?

A. No.

Q. Would the person to whom you sold it receive that bill?

A. Yes."

As to his authority to make collections, Mr. Fredrickson testified on Page 21:

"Q. You get that notice, and do you have any follow-up to ascertain whether or not the cribs are paid for?

A. In the event that they weren't paid for within a certain length of time, I would act at my own discretion. In other words, when you are selling a man something, he is a customer of yours, and you have got to determine which of those people you can approach and which you can't. It's a little insulting to ask a man for money at the time you are asking them for an order, so that is entirely up to the person's discretion. I am aware, however, of their current condition as far as payment is concerned, but that is a standard practice by all factories and manufacturers.

Q. And it is a standard practice of the Walker Manufacturing Company and prior to that the Tyre Manufacturing Company. Is that correct?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. Now, if an account became delinquent, would you go to the account and ask them about their delinquent account?

A. I never have.

Q. Well, whether you have or not, would that fall within the scope of your authorization if you—in other words, let me put it this way: Suppose you sold—

A. The only person that can really logically ask for payment is the company themselves or the company's direct paid representatives. Now, you would fall in that category in the event that some party refused to pay; then the only thing they could do would be to obtain counsel.

Q. I'm not interested—

A. That is, an attorney.

Q. —in this deposition in what the company can or can't do. All I am interested in is what you do .

A. No, I can't do that. I can go and ask them, suggest to them that they pay their bill, and I can in no circumstance demand or insist that they pay it."

As to the manner in which he was paid, he testified on Page 24:

"A. I am paid a commission on all shipments.

Q. And does that commission vary from item to item?

A. No, it's the same commission.

Q. Can you tell us what that commission was

during 1952 at the time you worked for the Tyre—

A. Six per cent.

Q. And what is it with Walker Manufacturing Company?

A. Six per cent.

Q. Now, when would that be paid? By that I mean would it be paid to you immediately upon sending in the order blank?

A. No, that's paid on a monthly basis.

Q. Now, would it make any difference when you were paid whether or not the person from whom you had solicited the order paid for it?

A. That's right.

Q. In other words, you wouldn't be paid until he had paid for the order that you had solicited?

A. No, I am paid as soon as the order is shipped. You see, the dating is two per cent ten days as far as the company is concerned. The dating is two per cent ten days, which means that if the company that received the shipment paid for it in ten days, they would receive a two per cent discount.

Q. And most of them do pay within ten days?

A. Ordinarily, but then the terms are two per cent net thirty, and in thirty days when the account is due and payable they pay the net amount rather than the two per cent.

Q. Suppose that a company from whom you had solicited an order on behalf of Walker Manufacturing Company or before that the Tyre

Manufacturing Company failed to pay for the particular items which were included in that order. Would you receive a commission on those particular items?

A. Yes.

Q. Regardless of whether they pay for them or not?

A. That's right.

Q. You receive your commission?

A. Uh huh.

Q. So your commission is six per cent of the cost of the items on the orders solicited regardless of whether or not they are paid for or not?

A. That's right.

Q. Now, do you have a discretion as to deciding who is a good credit risk or who isn't a good credit risk?

A. Yes, I am the sole judge.

Q. In other words, you can refuse to sell to certain people, or you can decide to sell to other people?

A. That's right. To decide is more accurate there. As far as refusing a sale is concerned, no, I can't. If the particular company that I haven't called on decides that they wanted to buy something from them, they would go ahead and do it, and it would be up to the discretion of the factory whether or not they wanted to ship them."

As to his authority to arrange for transfers of goods from one store to another in an emergency, Mr. Fredrickson had this to say: (Page 31)

- “Q. Now, do you ever have the situation arise in which maybe somebody needs something in a hurry, and one of your customers happens to have that particular item, and another customer doesn’t have that particular item and has a need for it, do you ever go to the one customer and pick that item up from that customer and take it over to the other customer?”
- A. No. Something like that is handled between stores. In other words, if one of the stores here on Main Street was out of a particular item, they might know who else sold the same thing, and they would simply call them up and say, ‘Joe, I need such and such. Have you got it to spare?’
- Q. Do they ever call you and ask if you know where they can get such and such?
- A. Oh, no.
- Q. In other words, if they wanted to find out what other store in town handled the same equipment that they handle so they could call them and get it from them, would they ever call you and ask you who was handling this equipment?
- A. They might, but it isn’t likely.
- Q. Has that ever happened during the course of your time you have represented the Walker Manufacturing Company?
- A. No.
- Q. Did that ever happen while you were representing the Tyre Manufacturing Company?
- A. No. Quite possibly during the war that hap-

pened, but it certainly never happened while I have been working.”

Summarizing the testimony, Mr. Fredrickson testified on Page 33:

“Q. Now, I would like — let me ask you a question which is more or less of a summation, and ask you if it is true, or if it is not true, in which way it is not true. Do you see what I mean? I understand your relationship with the Walker Manufacturing Company and before that the Tyre Manufacturing Company to be what you term as a manufacturer’s representative. Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are empowered, speaking particularly now of the Walker Manufacturing Company and Tyre Manufacturing Company before, you are authorized — you are furnished by that company pictures and specifications, catalogs and brochures of the particular equipment the company has sold?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are also furnished a list of the prices of the particular equipment?

A. Yes.

Q. And you are also furnished order blanks with the name of the company on the order blank and printed by the company itself. Is that correct?

A. Well, yes, but—

Q. You wouldn’t necessarily have to take your orders on it?

A. No.

- Q. But you are furnished those order blanks?
- A. That's right.
- Q. Are you furnished any other stationery besides order blanks?
- A. No.
- Q. Then you would go to the particular customer that you felt that you might make a sale, and you would show him the brochures and the pictures of this equipment sold by the Walker Manufacturing Company or before that the Tyre Manufacturing Company. Is that correct?
- A. Yes.
- Q. And you would tell them the price of the particular equipment that you were showing them?
- A. Yes.
- Q. And if they desired to purchase that particular equipment, then you would make out an order ordinarily on the form published by the company. Is that correct?
- A. Well, it just depends; would depend more on what I had rather than on the company's form.
- Q. But you would fill out this order then, whether it was on the company's order form or not?
- A. Yes.
- Q. And you would send this order direct to the Walker Manufacturing Company or prior to that the Tyre Manufacturing Company?

A. Yes.

Q. In California. Now, as I understand it, they would ship the material that you specified on the order blank to the particular company. Is that correct?

A. The correction there would be what the dealer specified, not what I specified.

Q. What the dealer had specified to you and you had put down on the order blank?

A. That's right.

Q. And they would ship that direct to the person involved. Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And they would—it has been your experience that they would ship it at the price that you quoted?

A. Well, that would be the price that they furnished me with.

Q. That's correct, but it is the price that the Walker Manufacturing Company furnished you with which you quoted to the consumer?

A. That's right.

Q. And at the time they shipped this material, they would send you some kind of a notice that the material had been shipped. Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And the notice that it had been shipped would include in the notice a statement of the price of the particular items. In other words, the price would be—the cost would be upon this notice?

- A. That's right.
- Q. Now, the Walker Manufacturing Company and before that the Tyre Manufacturing Company paid you six per cent of the sale price of the equipment that you sold. Is that correct?
- A. Yes.
- Q. And that was true regardless of whether or not the consumer paid for it or not?
- A. That's right.
- Q. And the company would in addition to that pay you six per cent of every order that was sent in for their equipment from the State of Utah, even though you yourself had not solicited the particular order?
- A. That's right. Can I make a correction there?
- Q. Yes, you may.
- A. When you say that I receive six per cent on all orders, that simply means that the order is shipped from the factory in good faith, and the company pays for it, then you see that is fine. That is simply entered on their credit books; but in the event that the company doesn't pay for it, I would already have received my commission, but if the account proved faulty, then they would deduct the commission from that amount.
- Q. From other amounts that might be due to you. Is that it?
- A. No. If there was no way of collecting it, they would deduct the commission from that.
- Q. And what would they do with the rest of it?

A. Well, the rest of it, you see, I would have to stand good for selling a customer who wouldn't pay as well as the company.

Q. In other words, the company would lose everything but the commission, and you would

A. Yes, that's right. They would stand behind lose the commission?

that loss, and I would have to stand behind the loss of the commission.

Q. Now, on small amounts, accounts of two or three hundred dollars—and we are still talking about the Walker Manufacturing Company and the Tyre Manufacturing Company, your authority for them—if one of your consumers did not pay a bill, then, of course, you would have a discretion as to whether or not you might go around and talk to them about paying the bills?

MR. HENDERSON: Are you asking a question or stating it?

Q. Well is that correct?

A. Well, yes. It's only at my own discretion because I am neither authorized nor requested by the company to do these things. It is a case of cementing good business relations.

Q. Could you go to the company and make some kind of a provision for payment? In other words, suppose the company owed—a consumer owed three hundred dollars, and you went to them. Could you arrange that they might pay that off at the sum of twenty-five dollars per month?

A. No, only the company—that arrangement can be made only between the two companies.

Q. Could you discuss such an arrangement and then submit it to the company for approval?

A. No.

Q. Could you, if you went there and they said, 'Yes, we owe the company three hundred dollars, we have neglected to pay it, but here is the three hundred dollars,' could you accept the three hundred dollars?

A. I would suggest that they mail it to them. I could take it and mail it myself, but it would only be a case of my doing it instead of them, my putting a six cent stamp on an envelope instead of them doing it, because that wouldn't accomplish anything. You can realize that.

Q. Now, you have never received any complaints from the customers or the customers' customers about any of the equipment that you have sold for Walker Manufacturing Company or before that the Tyre Manufacturing Company. Is that correct?

A. That's true, yes.

Q. Now, it is your practice with these other companies that you represent that if you do receive complaints that you you go to the customers, your customer's store and look over the equipment. Is that correct?

MR. HENDERSON: I object to that. That's not his testimony, Mr. Hanson. It is suggesting, leading, and I object to the form of the question.

Q. Do you want to tell me what you can do if you receive a complaint about some of this stuff that you sell?

A. I believe that you will find a little bit further on that you asked this same question, and I told you at that time that I could only go to a customer's home, that is, a retail customer's home with representatives of the store or, that is, not one of their employees but one of the owners, and inspect it and then tell the factory exactly what I found, because I have no authorization to recommend any change in the merchandise whatsoever. The only ones that can do it, it is between the two companies."

We have only quoted the most pertinent parts of the deposition as to the points involved. A reading of the entire deposition will disclose other testimony supporting third party plaintiff's position, which we have not set out herein.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT NO. I

THE DISTRICT COURT OF WEBER COUNTY DID NOT ERR IN DENYING THE MOTION OF THIRD PARTY DEFENDANT TO DISMISS THE THIRD PARTY ACTION UPON THE GROUND THAT THE COURT LACKED JURISDICTION OF SAID THIRD PARTY DEFENDANT AND THAT THE SERVICE OF SUMMONS WAS VOID.

POINT NO. II.

SAID THIRD PARTY COMPLAINT DID STATE A CLAIM UPON WHICH RELIEF COULD BE GRANTED TO THE THIRD PARTY PLAINTIFF AGAINST THE THIRD PARTY DEFENDANT.

ARGUMENT

POINT NO. I

THE DISTRICT COURT OF WEBER COUNTY DID NOT ERR IN DENYING THE MOTION OF THIRD PARTY DEFENDANT TO DISMISS THE THIRD PARTY ACTION UPON THE GROUND THAT THE COURT LACKED JURISDICTION OF SAID THIRD PARTY DEFENDANT AND THAT THE SERVICE OF SUMMONS WAS VOID.

While as stated in *Parke-Davis Co. v. Fifth Judicial Court in and for Beaver County*, 93 Utah 217, 72 P2 466:

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